

Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 p: 701.532.5100 | f: 701.232.5043 e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org www.fmmetrocog.org

553rd Transportation Technical Committee Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments THURSDAY, May 9, 2024 – 10:00 a.m. Metro COG Conference Room AGENDA

1. Call to Order and Introductions

2. Approve the Agenda Action Item

3. Consider Minutes of the April 11, 2024 TTC Meeting Action Item

4. Public Input Opportunity Public Input

5. 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Amendment 7 Action Item

6. Transit Development Plan Update Request for Proposals Action Item

7. Agency Updates Discussion Item

a. City of Fargo e. City of Horace

b. City of Moorheadc. City of West Fargof. Cass Countyg. Clay County

d. City of Dilworth h. Other Member Jurisdictions

8. Additional Business Information Item

9. Adjourn

REMINDER: The next TTC meeting will be held Thursday, June 13, 2024 at 10:00 a.m.

Metro COG is encouraging citizens to provide their comments on agenda items via email to leach@fmmetrocog.org. To ensure your comments are received prior to the meeting, please submit them by 8:00 a.m. on the day of the meeting and reference which agenda item your comments address. If you would like to appear via video or audio link for comments or questions on a regular agenda or public hearing item, please provide your e-mail address and contact information to the above e-mail at least one business day before the meeting.

For Public Participation, please REGISTER with the following link: https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_dISd4WBsS1Kb6foN0Sdv5A

Red Action Items require roll call votes.

NOTE: Full Agenda packets can be found on the Metro COG Web Site at http://www.fmmetrocog.org - Committees

Metro COG is committed to ensuring all individuals, regardless of race, color, sex, age, national origin, disability/handicap, sexual orientation, and/or income status have access to Metro COG's programs and services. Meeting facilities will be accessible to mobility impaired individuals. Metro COG will make a good faith effort to accommodate requests for translation services for meeting proceedings and related materials. Please contact Savanna Leach, Metro COG Executive Assistant, at 701-532-5100 at least five days in advance of the meeting if any special accommodations are required for any member of the public to be able to participate in the meeting.

552nd Meeting of the FM Metro COG Transportation Technical Committee Thursday, April 11, 2024 – 10:00 am Metro COG Conference Room

Members Present:

Julie Bommelman City of Fargo, MATBUS

Maegin Elshaug City of Fargo Planning (alternate for Nicole Crutchfield)

Jeremy Gorden City of Fargo Transportation Engineering

Ben Griffith Metro COG

Cole Hansen Cass County Planning

Jace Hellman City of Horace – Community Development Director

Robin Huston City of Moorhead Planning Matthew Jacobson Clay County Planning

Don Lorsung City of Dilworth Community Development

Aaron Nelson West Fargo City Planning

Mary Safgren MnDOT – District 4

Jordan Smith MATBUS (alternate for Lori Van Beek)

Justin Sorum Clay County Engineering

TomSoucyCass County Highway EngineeringBritStevensNDSU – Transportation Manager

Tom Trowbridge City of Moorhead Engineering (alternate for Jon Atkins)

Andrew Wrucke City of West Fargo Engineering
Wayne Zacher NDDOT – Local Government Division

Members Absent:

Jonathan Atkins City of Moorhead Traffic Engineering (alternate present)

Nicole Crutchfield City of Fargo Planning (alternate present)

Kelly Krapu Freight Representative - TrueNorth Compliance Service

Joe Raso GFMEDC

Lori Van Beek City of Moorhead, MATBUS (alternate present)

Others Present:

Adam Altenburg Metro COG
Paul Bervik Metro COG
Angie Bolstad Stantec
Jaron Capps Metro COG

James Dahlman City of Horace – Interstate Engineering

Dan Farnsworth Metro COG John Forman Ulteig Wade Frank Stantec

Emma Kogan Member of the Public

Savanna Leach Metro COG Chelsea Levorsen Metro COG Michael Maddox Metro COG

Scott KLJ Middaugh Muscha Brent Apex Schaffler Metro COG Ayden Erika Shepard **MnDOT** Kristen Sperry FHWA - ND Dan Triller SEH

Sam Trebilcock Houston Engineering

1. CALL TO ORDER AND INTRODUCTIONS

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 am, on April 11, 2024 by Chair Griffith. A quorum was present.

2. Approve the 552 TTC Meeting Agenda

Chair Griffith asked if there were any questions or changes to the 552 TTC Meeting Agenda.

Motion: Approve the 552 TTC Meeting Agenda. Mr. Lorsung moved, seconded by Mr. Trowbridge MOTION, PASSED. Motion carried unanimously.

3. APPROVE March 14, 2024 TTC MEETING MINUTES

Chair Griffith asked if there were any questions or changes to the March 14, 2024 TTC Meeting Minutes.

Motion: Approve the March 14, 2024 TTC Minutes. Ms. Huston moved, seconded by Mr. Trowbridge MOTION, PASSED Motion carried unanimously.

4. Public Comment Opportunity

No public comments were made or received.

5. 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Amendment 6

Mr. Bervik presented amendment 6 to the 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). A public notice was published on Wednesday, March 27, 2024, which advertised the public meeting. The public notice advertised that public comments would be accepted until 12:00 noon on Thursday, March 11, 2024. No comments were received.

The proposed amendment to the 2024-2027 TIP is as follows:

 Modification of Project 1240005: Casselton construction of a new shared use path along Governor's Drive from 8th Street South to 0.4 miles north of 37th Street Southeast (2024). Splitting the project into phases and updating the project limits, project description, total project cost, and local cost.

Motion: Recommend approval of Amendment 6 of the Metro COG 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) to the Policy Board. Mr. Lorsung moved, seconded by Mr. Wrucke MOTION, PASSED Motion carried unanimously.

6. West 94 Growth Area Study Request for Proposals (RFP)

Mr. Farnsworth presented the West 94 Growth Area Study Request for Proposals (RFP). In final reviews of the RFP, West Fargo has requested the project be

renamed as West 94 Area Transportation Plan. The objective of this study is to determine the most likely growth and travel scenarios (resulting from development of the West 94 Growth Area) as well as planning-level connections to/from the Growth Area, including a connection to I-94. In addition, this study will develop a proposed arterial/collector roadway network within the Growth Area.

This Study will be a consultant-led study with a total budget of \$300,000. 80%, or \$240,000, will come from Metro COG's CPG funds with 20% (\$60,000) coming from the City of West Fargo. The study is expected to kick-off in July of 2024 with a completion timeframe of June/July of 2025. Due to new requirements from the FHWA, no carry-over funds will be allowed between 2024 and 2025. Therefore, the currently-allocated \$150,000 for this study will need to be spent in 2024 and \$150,000 will be allocated for this study in 2025.

Mr. Gorden asked why 38th Street North of the Diversion was not included. Mr. Farnsworth said that this was previously studied in the Northwest Metro Transportation Plan previously completed by Metro COG. This study covers the areas missed by the previous study.

Ms. Sperry asked that the original UPWP project name be included in the pending UPWP amendment. Mr. Griffith responded that it will be noted.

Motion: Recommend Policy Board approval of the West 94 Growth Area Study RFP
Mr. Nelson moved, seconded by Mr. Lorsung
MOTION, PASSED
Motion carried unanimously.

7. North Dakota Federal Functional Classification Update

Ms. Levorsen and Mr. Capps presented the final draft of the Federal Functional Classification network within the recently updated Adjusted Urbanized Area Boundary (AUSA). This update reflects changes that address new roadway developments, the expanded Urbanized Area Boundary, and new FHWA Guidance. All proposed changes were done in accordance with the Highway Functional Classification Concepts, Criteria and Procedures (2023).

Metro COG staff sent the draft to NDDOT just prior to the TTC meeting for preliminary review.

A number of roadway classifications were discussed, and Mr. Capps said a lot of reclassifications were for roadway continuity, and assessed with due diligence. Metro COG has not yet received any comments from NDDOT, and will address those at that time.

Motion: Recommend Policy Board approval of the 2024 NDDOT Federal Functional Classification Update.

Mr. Gorden moved, seconded by Mr. Trowbridge

MOTION, PASSED Motion carried unanimously.

8. 15th Avenue North Corridor Study Request for Proposals (RFP)

Mr. Maddox presented the 15th Avenue North Corridor Study Request for Proposals (RFP). The 15th Avenue North Study would identify improvements (e.g., paving) that could be made to the facility as well as identify any issues that there may be. The study would also look at the future jurisdictional ownership of the roadway.

Metro COG identified this effort as a consultant-led effort included in its Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) to begin in 2024. The budget for this project is \$150,000 (\$120,000 CPG, \$30,000 local match to be split between Clay County and the City of Dilworth).

Motion: Recommend Policy Board approval of the 15th Avenue North Corridor Study RFP
Mr. Smith moved, seconded by Mr. Lorsung
MOTION, PASSED
Motion carried unanimously.

9. 2024 Bicycle and Pedestrian Count Report

Mr. Bervik presented the 2024 Bicycle and Pedestrian Count Report. The attendees were impressed with the graphics used to present the data. Mr. Bervik also presented an aerial map identifying the proposed locations of a dozen additional counters, which had been prioritized by Metro COG's Bike-Ped Committee, should funding ever become available.

10. Agency Updates

Metro COG – Mr. Farnsworth shared that COG former Executive Secretary, Joan Geyer, who retired in 2015, recently passed away. She worked at Metro COG for 18 years. Mr. Griffith said that Metro COG was preparing for receipt of the carryover funding from NDDOT/FHWA that were previously de-obligated. He encouraged any jurisdictions to reach out with any smaller projects that could be started and completed by the end of the 2024 FY year.

Fargo – Mr. Gorden shared some pictures of the bridge project at Sheyenne and 52nd Ave progress. Construction updates.

West Fargo – Planned 2025 Reconstruction 7th Ave/9th St East Project STBG and Sate Flex Funds awarded. Bolton & Menk to complete a Traffic Management Center study, with various grants as well.

Horace – Construction updates, Land Use Ordinance approved and in use.

Moorhead – Underpass Project underway, other construction updates and grant applications. 10 New busses received – 1 Fargo and 9 Moorhead fixed route.

Dilworth – Comp Plan update 2025, Functional Classification updates

522 Meeting of the FM Metro COG Transportation Technical Committee – page 4 Thursday, April 11, 2024

Cass County – Construction updates

Clay County – Underpass, roundabout South of Moorhead

NDDOT/FHWA – asking for UPWP Amendment 6 update

11. Additional Business

There was no additional business to discuss.

12. Adjourn

The 522 Regular Meeting of the TTC was adjourned on April 11, 2024 at 11:04 a.m.

THE NEXT FM METRO COG TRANSPORTATION TECHNICAL COMMITTEE MEETING WILL BE HELD May 9, 2024, 10:00 A.M.

Respectfully Submitted,

Savanna Leach Executive Assistant

Agenda Item 5

METROCOG Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments

Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 p: 701.232.3242 | f: 701.232.5043 e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org www.fmmetrocog.org

To: Transportation Technical Committee

From: Paul Bervik, Assistant Transportation Planner

Date: May 3, 2024

Re: 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Amendment 7

The Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments (Metro COG) will hold a public meeting both in person and via Zoom Video Communications on Thursday, May 9, 2024 at 10:00 am to consider public comments regarding a proposed amendment to the 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) for the FM Metropolitan Area. The proposed amendment to the 2024-2027 TIP reflects modified federally funded projects within the Metropolitan Planning Area (MPA).

A public notice was published in the Forum of Fargo-Moorhead on Wednesday, April 24, 2024, which advertised the public meeting, detailed how to request additional information, and provided information on how to submit public comments regarding the proposed amendment. The public notice advertised that public comments will be accepted until 12:00 noon on Thursday, May 9, 2024. As of the drafting of this memo, no written comments have been received.

The proposed amendment to the 2024-2027 TIP is as follows:

- 1. **Modification of Project 4220019:** Fargo rehabilitation of 36th Street South bridge at Rose Coulee (2025). Updating project description, total project cost, and cost breakdowns.
- 2. **Modification of Project 9231001:** NDDOT rehabilitation of City of Fargo's 36th Street South bridge at Rose Coulee (2025). Removing redundant project.
- 3. **Modification of Project 5245068:** Moorhead reconstruction of 34th Street from 4th Avenue S to 3rd Avenue N (2025). Updating local and state cost breakdowns.
- 4. **Modification of Project 5245069:** Moorhead reconstruction of 34th Street from 4th Avenue S to 3rd Avenue N (2025). Updating local and state cost breakdowns.
- 5. **New Project 8247070:** MnDOT construction of a NEVI charging station along 194 (2025).

See Attachment 1 for more detailed project information.

Requested Action: Recommend approval of Amendment 7 of the Metro COG 2024-2027 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) to the Policy Board.

Lead Agency	Metro COG ID State Number	Project Year	Project Location	Length	Project Lir From	nits To	Project Description	Improvement Type	Total Project Cost	Federal Revenue Source	Other Revenue Source	Revenue
Amendment 7 - 202 Existing projects wi		_										
City of Fargo	4220019 23773	2025	36th St S		2.0 S of I-94 @ Rose Coulee		Deck Overlay, Rail Retrofit, Reset Approach Guardrail Previous Metro COG ID Number 9231001. Deck Overlay, Rail Retrofit, Reset Approach Guardrail ***Pending***	Rehabilitation	\$261,000 \$380,000	STBG	Local	\$156,000 \$307,534 \$105,000 \$72,466
NDDOT	9231001 23773	2025	Structures along- the Rose Coulee	0.023			VARIOUS STRUCUTRES: DECK OVERLAY,BR RAIL RETRO, APPR SLAB REP, SPALL REPAIRS (#5 0029 061.394R; 0029 061.394L; 0029 061.417)	Rehabilitation	\$ 200,000	IM	Local	\$162,000 \$38,000
Amendment 7 - 202 Existing projects wi												
City of Moorhead	5245068	2025	34th Street		4th Avenue S	3rd Avenue N	Reconstruction of 34th Street.	Reconstruction	\$ 5,267,000	STBG	2025 CRP Project	\$3,647,000 \$150,000
											State Local	\$1,470,000
City of Moorhead	5245069	2025	34th Street		4th Avenue S	3rd Avenue N	Reconstruction of 34th street shared use path on westside of roadway. Construction of new sidewalk on eastside of roadway.	Reconstruction	\$ 150,000	CRP	State Local	\$120,000 \$30,000
Amendment 7 - 202 New projects	24-2027 Metro CO	G TIP										
MnDOT	8247070 8824-259	2025	I-94		EXIT 1A OR 2A/B		**NEVI**DISTRICTWIDE INSTALL NEVI CHARGING STATION WITHIN 1 MILE FROM EXIT 1A OR 2A/B ON 194	New Construction	\$ 867,000	NEVI	State Local	\$693,600 \$86,700 \$86,700

Agenda Item 6



Case Plaza Suite 232 | One 2nd Street North Fargo, North Dakota 58102-4807 p: 701.232.3242 | f: 701.232.5043 e: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org www.fmmetrocog.org

To: Transportation Technical Committee

From: Chelsea Levorsen, Assistant Transportation Planner

Date: May 9, 2024

Re: MATBUS 2026-2030 Transit Development Plan RFP

As part of the regional transportation planning process, Metro COG, in coordination with MATBUS, is seeking proposals from qualified consultant teams with expertise in developing an FTA compliant, five-year Transit Development Plan (TDP). As the designated MPO for the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area, Metro COG is responsible under federal law for maintaining a continuous, comprehensive, and coordinated transportation planning process.

It is essential that the TDP be updated to provide adequate guidance to make operational adjustments, address capital needs, note changes in fixed-route and paratransit operations, and re-evaluate local, state, and federal funding level changes that have occurred over the subsequent five-year planning period. It is also necessary to provide adequate guidance in the development and execution of coordinated transit services in the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area.

Metro COG staff has worked with MATBUS staff to develop a Request for Proposal (RFP) with a draft scope of work for the 2026-2030 TDP.

The TDP lays out all of the transit service goals, priorities, and service changes that MATBUS would like to implement between 2026 and 2030. Metro COG has traditionally led this planning effort on behalf of MATBUS. This Study will be consultant-led with a total budget of \$200,000. 80% (\$160,000) will come from Metro COG's CPG funds with 20% (\$16,666 Fargo Transit and \$13,334 Moorhead Transit) coming from MATBUS. Due to new requirements from the FHWA, no carry-over funds will be allowed between 2024 and 2025. Therefore, the currently-allocated \$100,000 for this study will need to be expended by December 31, 2024 and \$100,000 will be allocated for this study in 2025.

Recommended Motion: The Metro COG Transportation Technical Committee Recommends approval of the MATBUS 2026-2030 Transit Development Plan RFP to the Policy Board.

FARGO-MOORHEAD METROPOLITAN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)

PROJECT NO. 2024-xxx

2026-2030 Transit Development Plan

May, 2024

APPROVED:

Ben Griffith Metro COG, Executive Director



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)

The Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments (Metro COG) requests proposals from qualified consultants for the following project:

2026-2030 Fargo Transit Plan

Qualifications based selection criteria will be used to analyze proposals from responding consultants. The most qualified candidates may be invited to present an in-person, virtual, or hybrid interview. Upon completion of interviews and technical rankings, Metro COG will enter into negotiations with the top ranked firm. **Sealed cost proposals shall be submitted with the RFP**. The cost proposal of the top ranked firm will be opened during contract negotiations. Those firms not selected for direct negotiations will have their unopened cost proposals returned. Metro COG reserves the right to reject any or all submittals. This project will be funded, in part with federal transportation funds and has a not-to-exceed budget of **\$200,000**.

Interested firms can request a full copy of the RFP by telephoning 701.532.5100, or by e-mail: metrocog@fmmetrocog.org. Copies will be posted on the North Dakota Department of Transportation QBS website (https://www.dot.nd.gov) and are also available for download in .pdf format at www.fmmetrocog.org.

All applicants must be prequalified with the North Dakota Department of Transportation (NDDOT). If not prequalified with the NDDOT, applicants will be required to submit a completed Standard Form 330 (Exhibit D) with their submittal of information.

All proposals received by **4:30 pm (Central Time) on Monday**, **June 10**, **2024** will be given equal consideration. Proposals received after 4:30 pm (Central Time) on Monday, June 10, 2024 will not be considered. Respondents must submit six (6) print copies and one (1) PDF copy of the proposal and one (1) sealed hard copy of the cost proposal. The full length of each proposal shall not exceed thirty (30) pages; including any supporting material, charts, or tables.

Hard copies of technical and cost proposals shall be shipped or hand-delivered to ensure timely delivery to the contact defined below:

Chelsea Levorsen
Assistant Transportation Planner
Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments
Case Plaza, Suite 232 - One 2nd Street North - Fargo, ND 58102
Levorsen@fmmetrocog.org
701-532-5102

Fax versions will not be accepted as substitutes for the hard copies. Once submitted, the proposals will become property of Metro COG.

Note: The document can be made available in alternative formats for persons with disabilities by contacting Savanna Leach, Office Manager at 701.532.5100 or leach@fmmetrocog.org.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

l.	Agency Overview4
II.	Purpose of Request4
III.	Background Information5
IV.	Project Objective
٧.	Scope of Work and Performance Tasks8
VI.	Implementation Schedule
VII.	Evaluation and Selection Process
VIII.	Proposal Content
IX.	Submittal Information
Χ.	General RFP Requirement
XI.	Contractual Information
XII.	Payments
XIII.	Federal and State Funds
XIV.	Title VI Assurances
XV.	Termination Provisions
XVI.	Limitation on Consultant24
XVII.	Conflict of Interest
XVIII.	Insurance
XIX.	Risk Management24
Exhibit	A – Cost Proposal Form27
Exhibit	B – Federal Clauses
Exhibit	C – SNF 60232 Proposed Subconsultant Request30
Exhibit	D – Debarment of Suspension Certification31

Note: Throughout this RFP, Metro COG may be referred to as 'Client' and the consulting firm may be referred to as 'Consultant', 'Contractor', or 'Firm'.

I AGENCY OVERVIEW

The Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments (Metro COG) serves as the Council of Governments (COG) and Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the greater Fargo, North Dakota – Moorhead, Minnesota Metropolitan Area. As the designated MPO for the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area, Metro COG is responsible under federal law for maintaining a continuous, comprehensive, and coordinated transportation planning process.

Metro COG is responsible, in cooperation with the North Dakota and Minnesota Departments of Transportation (NDDOT and MnDOT, respectively) and our local planning partners, for carrying out the metropolitan transportation planning process and other planning needs of a regional nature. Metro COG represents eleven cities and two counties that comprise the Metro COG region in these efforts.

II PURPOSE OF REQUEST

As part of the regional transportation planning process, the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments (Metro COG), in coordination with Metro Area Transit (MATBUS), is seeking proposals from qualified consultant teams with expertise in developing a Federal Transit Administration (FTA) compliant, five-year Transit Development Plans (TDP). As the designated Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area, Metro COG is responsible under federal law for maintaining a continuous, comprehensive, and coordinated transportation planning process. A component to this process is the development of the TDP which is intended to identify strategies and recommendations to improve transit service in the FM Area. It is essential that the TDP be updated to provide adequate guidance to make operational adjustments, address capital needs, note changes in fixed-route and paratransit operations, and reevaluate local, state, and federal funding level changes that have occurred over the subsequent five-year planning period. It is also necessary to provide adequate guidance in the development and execution of coordinated transit services in the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area.

III BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Transit service in the FM Region is currently operated jointly, through agreements, by two separate municipal departments with the Cities of Fargo, North Dakota and Moorhead, Minnesota, under the Metro Area Transit (MATBUS) banner. In 2023, MATBUS gave a total of 1,256,514 rides, servicing Dilworth, Moorhead, Fargo, and West Fargo. Within those Cities, MATBUS services the following five (5) Colleges: North Dakota State University (NDSU) main and downtown campuses, Concordia College, Minnesota State University-Moorhead (MSUM), Minnesota State Community and Technical College (M | State), and North Dakota State College of Science (NDSCS).

In addition to fixed-route service, MATBUS also provides paratransit for ADA-eligible residents who are unable to access fixed route services. FTA regulation requires paratransit services be made available for individuals within ¾ miles of fixed-route services. Currently, paratransit service is available for \$3 per ride for individuals who qualify, located within the Fargo-Moorhead urbanized area. MATBUS has been considering changing its paratransit policy to include a premium fare associated with rides outside of the ¾ mile perimeter.

Future goals of MATBUS include increasing ridership, attract and retain drivers, new transit hubs at West Acres and the Dilworth Walmart, improving shelter accessibility, updating its policy on the placement of shelters and other stop amenities, and implementing recommendations of the Transit Reorganization Study.

After the Covid 19 Pandemic, MATBUS saw a decrease in ridership. Since 2021, ridership has slowly been increasing, but it is still significantly below pre-Covid ridership. MATBUS staff have implemented a series of marketing strategies to attract new riders, including how-to tutorials, LinkFM partnership events, and community partnership events, such as Midwest Kid Fest, Stuff the Bus, and College Orientation in order to increase ridership.

The agency has struggled to hire and retain bus drivers. Due to a lack of bus drivers, MATBUS has had to make a number of route and service adjustments, including decreasing hours of operation from 11:15 PM to 10:15 PM Monday through Saturday as well as the continuation of suspended Sunday Service. Other changes include the reduction of mileage on routes 15, 18, 20, and 32, the suspension of route 36, and the replacement of Tapride with On-Demand Service. In order to attract and retain drivers, MATBUS has implemented a driver pay increase and a pay differential for night and weekend shifts.

In the past, Moorhead and Fargo have completed several planning studies evaluating the concept of a more consolidated transit operation. In 2023, Metro COG transitioned from a Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) to a Transportation Management Area (TMA) and key MATBUS staff from both Fargo and Moorhead announced their upcoming retirements. This led to the creation of the MATBUS Reorganizations Study, to accelerate the consolidation of MATBUS operations. Currently, MATBUS is in the process of implementing recommendations from the study, including; restructuring its governance

structure, reorganizing staff structure, designating fund allocations, and finalizing a revised joint-powers agreement. In the near future, MATBUS will need to develop policy related to the recommendations of the Reorganization Study, including; in-house driver acquisition and training and revenue generation.

Currently, on-demand / micro-transit service is offered to the Fargo Industrial Park and at the NDSU Main Campus during evening hours. There has been an increase in demand for new service by local developments, jurisdictions and agencies. MATBUS would like to expand its Micro transit reach and create a policy for new service requests. MATBUS is interested in pursuing the integration of micro-transit solutions to supplement its fixed-route service.

The Coordinated Human Service Transportation Plan (CHSTP) is a required component of the TDP. MATBUS coordinates with some of these providers on a regular basis (Valley Senior Services). The CHSTP component of the plan is useful to MATBUS in coordinating service. MATBUS has considered directly providing senior ride service in the past. Moorhead Transit contracts with Valley Senior Services to fill gaps in transit service and to supplement paratransit service in Moorhead and Fargo, however, Fargo Transit does not. Now that MATBUS is a large Urban provider, it receives a direct sub-allocation of FTA 5310 funding. The CHSTP and the TDP should address and coordinate such service and set direction for the use of the dedicated funding source.

Development and adoption of the TDP is recommended by the FTA to establish a transit agency's vision for public transportation, assess needs, and identify a framework for program implementation. The consideration of both long-range and short-range strategies and actions better enables the development of an integrated multimodal transportation system that efficiently operates and addresses transportation demand. As program implementation largely depends on funding, grants, and participation from FTA and/or other state agencies, there is a vital need for a comprehensive TDP to guide operation, maintenance, infrastructure, and capital considerations.

The TDP Update will analyze a wide range of service, capital, institutional/managerial, and financial alternatives. The consultant shall evaluate the existing transit system in place, gauge opportunities for improved transit coordination in the region, identify the most efficient approach to meet the needs of the public, and carefully consider where transit resources should be devoted over the five-year planning period.

The consultant should be aware of previous plans/studies completed by both Metro COG and member jurisdictions that may have an impact to transit. Plans include:

- Metro COG 2045 MTP: MetroGrow
- Metro COG 2050 MTP: Transportation Moving Ahead
- MATBUS Transit Reorganization Study
- MATBUS Transit Authority Study
- MATBUS Transit Facility Study
- MATBUS 2021-2025 Transit Development Plan

IV PROJECT OBJECTIVES

The TDP Update will analyze a wide range of service, capital, institutional/managerial, and financial alternatives. The consultant shall evaluate the existing transit system in place, gauge opportunities for improved transit coordination in the region, identify the most efficient approach to meet the needs of the public, and carefully consider where transit resources should be devoted over the five-year planning period. The objective of the MATBUS 2026-2030 Transit Development Plan is to develop a document that meets federal and state requirements, addresses local challenges in implementing transit service, integrates the transition to a large urban system, coordinates with the transit community, and provides policy framework and vision to base decisions affecting transit for the next five years. In order to accomplish the objective of this planning effort, the consultant must:

- 1. Evaluate current MATBUS policies regarding providing transit service within the Fargo-Moorhead Region
- 2. Provide MATBUS staff and leadership with goals, recommendations, and administrative policies to implement throughout the next five years. The consultant shall reference previously completed transit studies, specifically the Reorganizational Study, to make recommendations and develop policy.
- 3. This document should incorporate the region's transit needs and must be compliant with federal and state expectations. The consultant will be responsible to ensure all newly required documents pertaining to the Metro's new large urban area status are included. The expectation is that the final product will integrate all federally required components such as Performance Measures and the Consolidated Human Services Plan (CHSTP), while addressing local initiatives and concerns as well.
- 4. Identify gaps and transit needs that preclude the public's access, specifically addressing transit dependent, Title VI, and EJ to essential services including housing, employment, healthcare, school/education, and recreation.
- 5. Analyze new service strategies and technologies to provide enhanced transit service to the public.
- 6. Community outreach to asses the current transit service and identify future transit needs.

V SCOPE OF WORK AND PERFORMANCE TASKS

Metro COG is seeking a consultant that can provide the typical qualifications necessary in order to develop a TDP, with necessary elements to satisfy federal regulations, and has the ability to a provide pro-active approach, vision, innovation, collaboration, and sustainability in examining and proposing study recommendations.

Outlined below is a scope of work that will guide development of the MATBUS 2026-2030 Transit Development Plan. Metro COG has included the following scope of work to provide interested consultants insight into project intent, context, coordination, responsibility, and other elements to help facilitate proposal development.

This outline is not necessarily all-inclusive. The consultant may include in the proposal any additional performance tasks that will integrate innovative approaches to successfully complete the project. It is recommended that the consultant gain familiarity with the MATBUS system and the agency's needs.

It is imperative that the consultant apply forward planning and work on tasks simultaneously to ensure completion of the Transit Development Plan in a timely manner. The consultant will be judged on its ability to move the project forward and submit deliverables according to their schedule. Particular deference will be given to firms that can demonstrate their ability to aggressively accomplish tasks, especially completing all the elements planned for 2024. Metro COG would like the consultant to plan to expend the 2024 budget by December 31, 2024.

At a minimum, the consultant will be expected to establish detailed analyses, recommendations, and/or deliverables for the following tasks:

Task 1 – Project Management and Coordination

This task involves activities required to manage the project including staff, equipment and documentation. It also includes the preparation of monthly progress reports, documenting travel and expense receipts, and preparing and submitting invoices for reimbursement. In addition, this task includes progress meetings with Metro COG. It should be assumed that progress meetings will occur every two weeks.

The Consultant will assign a single person to serve through the life of the contract as Consultant Project Manager (PM). The PM must be the person identified in the selected firm's proposal and may not be changed without prior written approval of Metro COG. The PM is responsible for the overall project management necessary to ensure the satisfactory completion of the Transit Development Plan, on-time and on-budget, in accordance with the scope of services. The PM will serve as a single point of contact and will be expected to ensure the Consultant team is properly managed, adequate resources are available, submittals are timely, quality control processes are utilized for maximum benefit, and invoices are submitted in a timely fashion.

The PM will submit monthly invoices with documentation acceptable to Metro COG throughout the life of the contract. Invoices must include the monthly progress report, a breakout of activities by task, employee hours for those tasks, and any supportive documentation for expenses. All invoice submittals, including progress reports, and any supportive materials shall be submitted to the Metro COG project manager no later than the 2nd Thursday of the month. This is to ensure invoices are processed in a timely fashion.

Task 2 – Community Engagement

In compliance with Metro COG's adopted Public Participation Plan (PPP), the consultant will develop and implement an extensive community engagement program that seeks to gain input from community members from all parts of the study area. This effort should particularly focus on transit dependent populations, current ridership, low-income communities, newly-arrived immigrant communities, potential riders, and businesses/organizations that serve these populations. Broad-based community engagement is considered critical to the success of this plan. The consultant should identify Study Review Committee (SRC) members, stakeholders, and other coordinating agencies that should be party to the planning process.

The consultant should propose engagement methods they think would be most successful in the planning effort to solicit direct participation from the above groups. The consultant will facilitate all community engagement activities, and should propose the number, type, and strategy for each community engagement effort. At a minimum, the community engagement program should address the following:

- Identification of stakeholders
- Engagement strategies and activities, tied back to reaching all identified stakeholder groups, including those difficult to reach
- Timeline for community engagement activities and desired type of community feedback at project checkpoints or milestones
- Communication methods for sharing information with the public, stakeholders, and the above populations in the study area
- Strategy for effective and consistent messaging across platforms

It is imperative to consider the public and keep them informed of the planning activities and outcomes using strategies that include the internet and social media. Providing information to Metro COG and other regional jurisdictions for posting on their websites will be required. New and innovative public engagement solutions are highly encouraged. Metro COG promotes an active public engagement mantra, where engagement events are conducted out in the community where gatherings are taking place. Feedback at these events is to be solicited through activities that are easily approachable and fun for the participant.

Study Review Committee

Development of the MATBUS 2026-2030 TDP will be guided by a Study Review Committee (SRC), which will provide oversight and input into the development of

the Plan. MATBUS and Metro COG staff prefer in-person meetings on a regular basis throughout the planning process. The consultant should propose the quantity, timing, and content of these meetings, as well as incorporate enough time and travel to realistically meet these expectations. The consultant will be responsible for coordinating, scheduling, and developing agendas for the SRC meetings. This should be done in coordination with Metro COG's project manager. The consultant will be expected to distribute materials to the SRC in a timely manner, at least one-week before the scheduled meeting. The consultant is also responsible for the recording of meeting minutes, which should be submitted to Metro COG's project manager no later than one-week following the SRC meeting.

Public Meetings / Open Houses

The consultant shall be required to submit its approach on how it will reach out to the community during the planning process. It is expected that each round of community engagement will have a presence in West Fargo, Fargo, Moorhead, and Dilworth. The consultant's approach should address:

- How it will go about these meetings
- Methods it will employ
- Quantity of rounds of public engagement meetings
- Timing or each round in the planning process, and
- Types of engagement techniques the consultant is accustomed to utilizing to accomplish this task.

The consultant will be responsible for fully developing each round of public engagement before it is proposed to Metro COG's project manager. Scheduling and development should occur well in advance of the proposed engagement event to ensure timely project completion.

Passenger Survey

The consultant shall be required to submit an approach to surveying existing and potential riders. The approach shall detail the potential content of the survey, how the survey would be disseminated, and an approach to how the consultant will use the information to develop the TDP. The consultant will be expected to explain how the passenger survey will fit into the project timeline in order to ensure timely deliverables. This approach should include interactive elements, such as maps, that the consultant can bring to bear in order to increase the public's ease of response and allow for more precise input. The Consultant can use MATBUS staff to encourage passenger participation. Consultant staff does not need to be present on the Bus for survey distribution.

Stakeholder Engagement

The consultant will be required to identify and to reach out to agencies in the community that serve transit dependent populations in order to gain insight into transit issues and needs. This input should be directly used to develop elements of the TDP. The consultant should propose methods it will employ to conduct this

outreach along with the number of stakeholder engagement meetings and the timing of such meetings within the project schedule.

Task 3 – Data Collection of Existing Conditions

The consultant shall gather and analyze existing conditions relative to transit service provided by MATBUS. They shall coordinate with Metro COG and MATBUS to consider the roles and responsibilities of how specific data will be collected and if additional data development will be required. This should include (but is not limited to):

Performance Measures

The consultant shall document all federally required performance-based planning and programming approaches required of MATBUS through Federal legislation, as well as develop Key Performance Indicators (KPI) for items such as:

- Marketing efforts
- Staffing levels
- o Incidents
- On-time performance standards

The consultant should propose other such focus areas for KPI's it believes will be pertinent to this effort.

Public Transit Agency Safety Performance (PTASP) Measures

The consultant shall work with MATBUS and Metro COG to evaluate safety performance as required by the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL). The consultant should also propose any innovative approaches to integrating safety and any associated analytic measurement it feels would be pertinent to MATBUS in safely operating the transit system.

- Transit Asset Management (TAM) Inventory The consultant shall detail all MATBUS assets including their condition, their useful life, and their replacement schedule and associated costs. This effort shall be compliant to the Federal Transit Asset Management Plan requirements. MATBUS staff will provide the consultant with existing inventory documentation, and such information should be integrated into the TDP. Inventory shall include:
 - Fleet
 - Facilities
 - Any other capital assets (including technology)

Current Routes, Timetables, & Hours of Operation

A listing of existing detours and scheduled construction projects likely to occur in the life of this plan should be included. Future roadway projects will be provided in coordination with state and local engineers and Metro COG Staff. Metro COG

will make ReMIX Routing Software available for use by the consultant for any such routing analyses that would need to be performed. This should include:

- Existing routes
- Known detours that are currently in place or may occur within the life of this plan
- Current frequency on a route-by-route basis
- Hours or service.
- Stop Inventory

Fare Structure

The consultant shall document historic and current fares, as well as conduct a fare recovery analysis. The consultant shall conduct a fare analysis of both fixed-route and paratransit service, including comparisons on similar transit systems, and make suggestions accordingly.

Ridership

The consultant shall analyze ridership trends. MATBUS will supply the consultant with this information. This analysis should result in recommendations of how to attract new ridership as well as maintain existing ridership.

Note: Currently, all boarding data is recorded via fare box, located on each bus. MATBUS currently does not have the ability to track deboarding data. However, new software is in the process of being implemented with automatic passenger counters, with implementation planned for July-August 2024.

Existing Plans Integration

The consultant should review, summarize, and incorporate the recommendations of plans that have occurred and are actively taking place.

Document MATBUS Mission Statement(s), Goals, and Core Values

MATBUS will supply the consultant with any applicable mission statements, goals, policies, and core values that have been developed. The Consultant may have to work with MATBUS to develop these items.

Existing and Future Financials

MATBUS staff will provide the consultant with existing financial documentation, as requested. The consultant will be expected to assist MATBUS with coordinating and updating its 10-year financial plans between Moorhead and Fargo.

Evaluation of Deviated Fixed-Route Transit

The consultant shall include in its proposal an analysis of current MATBUS deviated fixed-route services as well as other micro transit options. This should include:

- Service areas
- Feeder systems
- MATBUS as coordinator of regional micro transit options (electric scooters, bike-share, car-share, etc.)

Task 4 – Goals, Policies, Priorities, and Performance Measures

The consultant shall lead a goal making exercise that sets the stage for how system improvements are considered and implemented over the course of the next five-years. This exercise should include developing policies that directly relate to addressing issues, meeting needs, and filling gaps. These items should directly relate to comments cultivated during Task 2: Community Engagement. This should also include a prioritization of goals and policies that will lead decision-making. The consultant should also evaluate current policies for their effectiveness and should identify policies that limit the achievement of goals that are developed in this task.

The consultant should report on existing Federal Transit Performance Measures, and work with MATBUS on ways to develop, track, and report internal performance measures. This may include the development of tools to aid MATBUS staff in these efforts. This task should culminate in a cohesive mission statement, vision, and goals for MATBUS as one agency.

Task 5 – Route Performance

The consultant must assess the performance of each route separately and offer suggestions as needed. This involves examining and analyzing factors like route ridership, mileage, accessibility, designated stops, and associated costs. Additionally, the consultant should devise a policy for MATBUS staff to consult in case route adjustments (including increases or decreases in service) are necessary due to unforeseen events like major community gatherings or staffing shortages.

Task 6 – Designated Stop Analysis

The consultant will evaluate current designated stops to not only determine where stops should be located, but also a policy that can be applied to the placement of designated stops. This will be done by analyzing stops based on:

- Boardings / deboardings
- Stop spacing
- Route performance
- Other such data

The consultant will also evaluate transit stop signage, ADA accessibility, parking within designated stop areas (as a signage and policy matter), and traffic conflicts. This analysis should also include amenities such as shelters, benches, lighting, and bus/shelter advertising that should be placed at each stop. The consultant can utilize metrics/policies that were developed as part of the MATBUS Transit Facility Analysis for this effort.

Task 7 – Future System Needs

The Consultant will address the needs, issues, and gaps in system service by proposing alterations or additions to transit service and policy.

The Consultant shall reevaluate the previously developed, future transit goals and determine how they align with the current and forecasted system needs. The consultant should also evaluate the potential for future high-capacity routes. This will require reference to previous studies, including the MATBUS Reorganizational Study, to identify needs of patrons as well as MATBUS staff. This may include recommendations of route/service changes, addition of new types of service, such as Bus Rapid Transit or Micro Transit, staff training policy, advertising policy, and/or fare adjustments

The Consultant shall evaluate the need for micro-transit service in the area. If it is determined that micro transit would be beneficial, the consultant will provide route maps and detailed service cost estimates as needed for micro transit implementation.

The Consultant shall review existing criteria and recommendations from the 2018 Facility Study to identify the need for new shelter and bench policies and locations. An analysis of the current stops and shelters would include assuring accessibility and ADA Compliance.

The consultant shall provide recommendations for integrating new technologies for both transit service and internal operations. The consultant should use the knowledge gained from Task 3 and Task 5 to recommend training or technologies that could be utilized to make improvements to transit operations, especially focused on technologies that could be integrated into the rolling stock to assist drivers. This may include the implementation of a Pedestrian Warning System or the use of Bus Simulators.

These new treatments should be derived from operant philosophies developed as part of Task 6: Goals, Policies, Priorities, and Performance Measures. Each recommendation should detail service cost, as well as impacts in regards to personnel, facilities, fleet riders, and any effect on operations in general. Any Fixed-Route or Micro transit proposal shall include a 'proposed route map/plan' deliverable.

Task 8 – Consolidated Human Services Transportation Plan (CHSTP)

The Consolidated Human Services Transportation Plan must be updated every five years in order for participants to be eligible to receive 5310 funding. The consultant should update and integrate the CHSTP into the Transit Development Plan. CHSTP elements include an assessment of available services, an assessment of transportation needs for persons with disabilities and seniors, strategies to address current service needs, and priorities for implementation. The CHSTP must follow FTA guidance and include all requirements associated with the Metro COG becoming a TMA.

Task 9 - Final Plan & Executive Summary

The consultant will deliver a draft MATBUS 2026-2030 TDP to the project team at least one (1) month before the approval process is set to begin in order for staff to provide comment on its contents. The consultant will then develop a final TDP to be brought forward for adoption by the MAT Coordinating Board, City of Fargo, City of Moorhead, and Metro COG. This final TDP shall include all elements as listed above as well as

appendices detailing technical elements that cannot fit into the formal plan, details of each public engagement effort, and all comments received throughout the planning process.

Upon completion of the final plan, the consultant will develop an executive summary that relays all pertinent information in an easy-to-follow format. The summary should be concise and highly graphic, highlighting all major recommendations of the plan, including brief summaries relating to existing conditions, issues identification, community engagement, plan development, and implementation strategies.

The consultant is responsible for a minimum of four (4) presentations. Of the four presentations, and upon direction by the SRC, the consultant may be responsible for a minimum of two (2) personal appearances before the MAT Coordinating Board (midproject & final approval). The consultant will also be responsible for personal appearances in front of Metro COG's TTC and Policy Board in the final approval stage of the project. The consultant should specifically detail all presentations proposed throughout the planning process within the project proposal. Other presentations may include the Fargo City Commission and/or Moorhead City Council.

Task 10 - Deliverables

The consultant will prepare a full draft of the transportation plan for review and comment by the SRC. This draft is to be provided as an electronic PDF to study review committee members. Comments received from the SRC will be incorporated in the final draft of the plan for public review.

Upon final completion, the consultant will be responsible for providing five (5) bound hard copies and a reproducible original of the study in PDF format. All meeting summaries and technical analyses will be included in the appendix of the study.

The consultant is expected to provide Metro COG with all data and plan products, including GIS shapefiles, Adobe InDesign files, and a high-resolution document PDF format for printing.

Note: The above scope of work should act as a guide in preparing the proposal. The consultant should add any elements it deems necessary to complete the intent of the planning effort. Upon award, the consultant, Metro COG, and MATBUS will negotiate the final scope of work elements.

VI SCHEDULE

Consultant Selection

Advertise for Consultant Proposals approximately 05/20/2024

Due Date for Proposal Submittals (by 4:30 p.m.) 06/10/2024

Interview Finalists 06/18/2024

Metro COG Policy Board Approval/Consultant Notice 06/20/2024

Finalize & Sign Contract Immediately after board Approval/Notice

QBS Submittal & Approval (Metro COG & NDDOT)

Expedited Process

Notice to Proceed* Immediately After QBS Approval

*Notice to Proceed shall not be issued until the Consultant has provided all materials required for contracting, including, but not limited to, the Proposed Sub-Consultant Request form (SFN 60232) and Prime Consultant Request to Sublet form (SFN 60233) form, if applicable, and the Qualifications Based Selection documentation has been fully compiled by Metro COG and submitted to and approved by the North Dakota Department of Transportation.

Project Schedule

The Consultant shall propose a project schedule to complete the work as expeditiously as possible. Consultants will be evaluated on their ability to complete as much work and expend as much of the \$200,000 budget as possible within calendar year 2024. This information should be included in the proposal.

VII EVALUATION AND SELECTION PROCESS

Selection Committee. The Client will establish a selection committee to select a consultant. The committee will likely consist of staff from Metro COG, the City of Fargo, the City of Moorhead, and other applicable stakeholders

The Consultant selection process will be administered under the following criteria:

- 20% Understanding of study objectives and local/regional issues
- 20% Proposed approach, work plan, and management techniques
- 20% Experience with similar projects
- 20% Expertise of the technical and professional staff assigned to the project
- 20% Current workload and ability to meet deadlines

The Selection Committee, at the discretion of the Client and under the guidance of NDDOT policy, will entertain formal oral presentations for the top candidates to provide additional information for the evaluation process. The oral presentations will be followed by a question-and-answer period during which the committee may question the prospective Consultants about their proposed approaches.

A Consultant will be selected on **June 20, 2024** based on an evaluation of the proposals submitted, the recommendation of the Selection Committee and approval by the Metro COG Policy Board.

The Client reserves the right to reject any or all proposals or to waive minor irregularities in said proposal, and reserves the right to negotiate minor deviations to the proposal with the successful Consultant. The Client reserves the right to award a contract to the firm or individual that presents the proposal, which, in the sole judgement of the Client, best accomplishes the desired results.

The RFP does not commit the Client to award a contract, to pay any costs incurred in the preparation of the contract in response to this request or to procure or contract for services or supplies. The Client reserves the right to withdraw this RFP at any time without prior notice.

All proposals, whether selected or rejected, shall become the property of the Client.

VIII PROPOSAL CONTENT

The purpose of the proposal is to demonstrate the qualifications, competence, and capacity of the Consultant seeking to provide comprehensive services specified herein for the Client, in conformity with the requirements of the RFP. The proposal should demonstrate qualifications of the firm and its staff to undertake this project. It should also specify the proposed approach that best meets the RFP requirements. The proposal must address each of the service specifications under the Scope of Work and Performance Tasks.

The Client is asking the Consultant to supply the following information. Please include all requested information in the proposal to the fullest extent practical.

- 1) Contact Information. Name, telephone number, email address, mailing address and other contact information for the Consultant's Project Manager.
- 2) Introduction and Executive Summary. This section shall document the Consultant name, business address (including telephone, FAX, email address(es)), year established, type of ownership and parent company (if any), project manager name and qualifications, and any major facts, features, recommendations or conclusions that may differentiate this proposal from others, if any.

- **3) Work Plan and Project Methodology.** Proposals shall include the following, at minimum:
 - a) A detailed work plan identifying the major tasks to be accomplished relative to the requested study tasks and expected product as outlined in this RFP:
 - b) A timeline for completion of the requested services, including all public participation opportunities and stakeholder meetings, identifying milestones for development of the project and completion of individual tasks.
 - c) List of projects with similar size, scope, type, and complexity that the proposed project team has successfully completed in the past.
 - d) List of the proposed principal(s) who will be responsible for the work, proposed Project Manager and project team members (with resumes).
 - e) A breakout of hours for each member of the team by major task area, and an overall indication of the level of effort (percentage of overall project team hours) allocated to each task. Note that specific budget information is to be submitted in a sealed cost proposal as described below in Section VIII. General Proposal Requirements.
 - f) A list of any subcontracted agencies, the tasks they will be assigned, the percent of work to be performed, and the staff that will be assigned.
 - a) List of client references for similar projects described within the RFP.
 - h) Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) and/or Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) Firms participation documentation, if applicable.
 - i) Ability of firm to meet required time schedules based on current and known future workload of the staff assigned to the project.
- **4) Signature.** Proposals shall be signed in ink by an authorized member of the firm/project team.
- **5) Attachments.** Review, complete, and submit the completed versions of the following RFP Attachments with the proposal:

Exhibit A - Cost Proposal Form (as identified in VIII 1)

Exhibit B – Federal Clauses

Exhibit C – SFN 60232: Proposed Sub-Consultant Request

Exhibit D – Debarment of Suspension Certificate and Certification of Restriction on Lobbying

Hard copies and PDF of technical proposals and hard copy of cost proposal should be shipped to ensure timely delivery to the contact as defined below:

Chelsea Levorsen
Assistant Transportation Planner
Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Council of Governments
Case Plaza, One 2nd Street North, Suite 232
Fargo, North Dakota 58102
Levorsen@fmmetrocog.org
701-532-5102

Proposals shall be received by 4:30 pm (Central Time) on Wednesday June 12, 2024 at the Metro COG office. Minority, women-owned and disadvantaged business enterprises are encouraged to participate. Respondents must submit six (6) print copies and one (1) PDF copy of the proposal and one (1) sealed hard copy of the cost proposal. The full length of each proposal shall not exceed thirty (30) pages; including any supporting material, charts, or tables.

GENERAL RFP REQUIREMENTS

IX Submittal Information

- 1) Sealed Cost Proposal. All proposals must be clearly identified and marked with the appropriate project name; inclusive of a separately sealed cost proposal per the requirements of this RFP. Cost proposals shall be based on an hourly "not to exceed" amount and shall follow the general format as provided within Exhibit A of this RFP. Metro COG may decide, in its sole discretion, to negotiate a price for the project after the selection committee completes its final ranking. Negotiation will begin with the Consultant identified as the most qualified per requirements of this RFP, as determined in the evaluation/selection process. If Metro COG is unable to negotiate a contract for services negotiations will be terminated and negotiations will begin with the next most qualified Consultant. This process will continue until a satisfactory contract has been negotiated. The sealed cost proposal is required to include the following documentation:
 - Documentation from the ND Secretary of State detailing the prime consultant is in good standing and is licensed to do business in the State of North Dakota
 - b. Documentation that the prime consultant is registered with the ND Board of Registration
 - c. Documentation showing registration with the federal System for Award Management (SAM.gov) that the prime consultant has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded, or deterred ineligible

- 2) Consultant Annual Audit Information for Indirect Cost. Consulting firms proposing to do work for Metro COG must have a current audit rate no older than 15 months from the close of the firm's Fiscal Year. Documentation of this audit rate must be provided with the sealed cost proposal. Firms that do not meet this requirement will not qualify to propose or contract for Metro COG projects until the requirement is met. Firms that have submitted all the necessary information to Metro COG and are waiting for the completion of the audit will be qualified to submit proposals for work. Information submitted by a firm that is incomplete will not qualify. Firms that do not have a current cognizant Federal Acquisition Regulations (FARs) audit of indirect cost rates must provide this audit prior to the interview. This documentation should be attached with the sealed cost proposal. The submitted Indirect Rate MUST match the Indirect Rate on all invoicing.
- 3) Debarment of Suspension Certification and Certification of Restriction on Lobbying. See Exhibit B, Federal Clauses regarding Debarment of Suspension and Restriction on Lobbying.
- 4) Respondent Qualifications. Respondents must submit evidence that they have relevant past experience and have previously delivered services similar to the requested services within this RFP. Each respondent may also be required to show that similar work has been performed in a satisfactory manner and that no claims of any kind are pending against such work. No proposal will be accepted from a respondent whom is engaged in any work that would impair his or her ability to perform or finance this work.
- **5) Disadvantaged Business Enterprise.** Pursuant to Department of Transportation policy and 49 CFR Part 23, Metro COG supports the participation of DBE/MBE businesses in the performance of contracts financed with federal funds under this RFP.
- 6) US DOT Policy Statement on Bicycle and Pedestrian Accommodations. Consultants are advised to review and consider the US DOT Policy Statement on Bicycle and Pedestrian Accommodation issued in March of 2010 when developing written proposals.
- 7) North Dakota Department of Transportation Consultant Administration Services Procedure Manual. Applicants to this Request for Proposal are required to follow procedures contained in the NDDOT Consultant Administration Services Procedure Manual, which includes prequalification of consultants. Copies of the Manual may be found on the NDDOT website www.dot.nd.gov/manuals/environmental/proceduremanual.pdf.

X CONTRACTUAL INFORMATION

1) The Client reserves the right to reject any or all proposals or to award the contract to the next most qualified firm if the successful firm does not execute a contract

- within forty-five (45) days after the award of the proposal. The Client will not pay for any information contained in proposals obtained from participating firms.
- 2) The Client reserves the right to request clarification on any information submitted and additionally reserves the right to request additional information of one (1) or more applicants.
- 3) Any proposal may be withdrawn up until the proposal submission deadline. Any proposals not withdrawn shall constitute an irrevocable offer for services set forth within the RFP for a period of ninety (90) days or until one or more of the proposals have been approved by the Metro COG Policy Board.
- 4) If, through any cause, the Consultant shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner the obligations agreed to, the Client shall have the right to terminate its contract by specifying the date of termination in a written notice to the firm at least ninety (90) working days before the termination date. In this event, the firm shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work completed.
- 5) Any agreement or contract resulting from the acceptance of a proposal shall be on forms either supplied by or approved by the Client and shall contain, as a minimum, applicable provisions of the Request for Proposals. The Client reserves the right to reject any agreement that does not conform to the Request for Proposal and any Metro COG requirements for agreements and contracts.
- 6) The Consultant shall not assign any interest in the contract and shall not transfer any interest in the same without prior written consent of Metro COG.
- 7) The Consultant agrees to not start any work on the project until the Qualifications Based Selection requirements have been satisfied and approved by the NDDOT, and Metro COG has provided the consultant with a notice to proceed.

XI PAYMENTS

The selected Consultant will submit invoices for work completed to the Client. Payments shall be made to the Consultant by the Client in accordance with the contract after all required services, and items identified in the scope of work and performance tasks, have been completed to the satisfaction of the Client.

XII FEDERAL AND STATE FUNDS

The services requested within this RFP will be partially funded with funds from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA). As such, the services requested by this RFP will be subject to federal and state requirements and regulations.

The services performed under any resulting agreement shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations. In addition, this contract will be subject to the relevant requirements of 2 CFR 200.

XIII TITLE VI ASSURANCES

Prospective Consultants should be aware of the following contractual ("Contractor") requirements regarding compliance with Title VI should they be selected pursuant to this RFP:

- 1) **Compliance with Regulations.** The Consultant shall comply with the regulations relative to nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations).
- 2) **Nondiscrimination.** The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability/handicap, or income status**, in the selection and retention of Subconsultants, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The Consultant shall not participate, either directly or indirectly, in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.
- 3) Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment. In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation, made by the Consultant for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each potential Subconsultant or supplier shall be notified by the Consultant of the Consultant's obligations to Metro COG and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability/handicap, or income status**.
- 4) Information and Reports. The Consultant shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information and its facilities as may be determined by Metro COG or the North Dakota Department of Transportation to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders, and instructions. Where any information required of a Consultant is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Consultant shall so certify to Metro COG, or the North Dakota Department of Transportation, as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.
- 5) Sanctions for Noncompliance. In the event of the Consultant's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions as outlined herein, the Client and the North Dakota Department of Transportation shall impose such sanctions as it or the Federal Highway Administration / Federal Transit Administration may determine to

be appropriate, including but not limited to:

- 6) Withholding of payments to the Consultant under the contract until the Consultant complies; or
- 7) Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.
- 8) **Incorporation of Title VI Provisions**. The Consultant shall include the provisions of Section XII, paragraphs 1 through 5 in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto.

The Consultant shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as Metro COG or the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance provided, however, that in the event a Consultant becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation by a Subconsultant or supplier as a result of such direction, the Consultant may request Metro COG enter into such litigation to protect the interests of Metro COG; and, in addition, the Consultant may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

** The Act governs race, color, and national origin. Related Nondiscrimination Authorities govern sex, 23 U.S.C. 324; age, 42 U.S.C. 6101; disability/handicap, 29 U.S.C. 790; and low income, E.O. 12898.

XIV TERMINATION PROVISIONS

The Client reserves the right to cancel any contract for cause upon written notice to the Consultant. Cause for cancellation will be documented failure(s) of the Consultant to provide services in the quantity or quality required. Notice of such cancellation will be given with sufficient time to allow for the orderly withdrawal of the Consultant without additional harm to the participants or the Client.

The Client may cancel or reduce the amount of service to be rendered if there is, in the opinion of the Client, a significant increase in local costs; or if there is insufficient state or federal funding available for the service, thereby terminating the contract or reducing the compensation to be paid under the contract. In such event, the Client will notify the Consultant in writing ninety (90) days in advance of the date such actions are to be implemented.

In the event of any termination, the Client shall pay the agreed rate only for services delivered up to the date of termination. The Client has no obligation to the Consultant, of any kind, after the date of termination. Consultant shall deliver all records, equipment and materials to the Client within 24 hours of the date of termination.

XV LIMITATION ON CONSULTANT

All reports and pertinent data or materials are the sole property of the Client and its state and federal planning partners and may not be used, reproduced or released in any form without the explicit, written permission of the Client.

The Consultant should expect to have access only to the public reports and public files of local governmental agencies and the Client in preparing the proposal or reports. No compilation, tabulation or analysis of data, definition of opinion, etc., should be anticipated by the Consultant from the agencies, unless volunteered by a responsible official in those agencies.

XVI CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No Consultant, Subconsultant, or member of any firm proposed to be employed in the preparation of this proposal shall have a past, ongoing, or potential involvement which could be deemed a conflict of interest under North Dakota Century Code or other law. During the term of this Agreement, the Consultant shall not accept any employment or engage in any consulting work that would create a conflict of interest with the Client or in any way compromise the services to be performed under this agreement. The Consultant shall immediately notify the Client of any and all potential violations of this paragraph upon becoming aware of the potential violation.

XVII INSURANCE

The Consultant shall provide evidence of insurance as stated in the contract prior to execution of the contract.

XVIII RISK MANAGEMENT

The Consultant agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Client and the state of North Dakota, its agencies, officers and employees (State), from and against claims based on the vicarious liability of the Client and the State or its agents, but not against claims based on the Client's and the State's contributory negligence, comparative and/or contributory negligence or fault, sole negligence, or intentional misconduct. The legal defense provided by Consultant to the Client and the State under this provision must be free of any conflicts of interest, even if retention of separate legal counsel for the Client and the State is necessary. Consultant also agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the Client and the State harmless for all costs, expenses and attorneys' fees incurred if the Client or the State prevails in an action against consultant in establishing and litigating the indemnification coverage provided herein. This obligation shall continue after the termination of this Agreement.

The Consultant shall secure and keep in force during the term of this agreement, from insurance companies, government self-insurance pools or government self-retention funds authorized to do business in North Dakota, the following insurance coverage:

- 1. Commercial general liability and automobile liability insurance minimum limits of liability required are \$500,000 per person and \$2,000,000 per occurrence.
- 2. Workforce Safety insurance meeting all statutory limits.
- 3. The Client and the State of North Dakota, its agencies, officers, and employees (State) shall be endorsed as an additional insured on the commercial general liability and automobile liability policies.
- 4. Said endorsements shall contain a "Waiver of Subrogation" in favor of the Client and the state of North Dakota.
- 5. The policies and endorsements may not be canceled or modified without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the undersigned Client and the State Risk Management Department.

The Consultant shall furnish a certificate of insurance evidencing the requirements in 1, 3, and 4, above to the Client prior to commencement of this agreement.

The Client and the State reserve the right to obtain complete, certified copies of all required insurance documents, policies, or endorsements at any time. Any attorney who represents the State under this contract must first qualify as and be appointed by the North Dakota Attorney General as a Special Assistant Attorney General as required under N.D.C.C. Section 54-12-08.

When a portion of the work under the Agreement is sublet, the Consultant shall obtain insurance protection (as outlined above) to provide liability coverage to protect the Consultant, the Client and the State as a result of work undertaken by the Subconsultant. In addition, the Consultant shall ensure that any and all parties performing work under the Agreement are covered by public liability insurance as outlined above. All Subconsultants performing work under the Agreement are required to maintain the same scope of insurance required of the Consultant. The Consultant shall be held responsible for ensuring compliance with those requirements by all Subconsultants.

Consultant's insurance coverage shall be primary (i.e., pay first) as respects any insurance, self-insurance or self-retention maintained by the Client or State. Any insurance, self-insurance or self-retention maintained by the Client or the State shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it. The insolvency or bankruptcy of the insured Consultant shall not release the insurer from payment under the policy, even when such insolvency or bankruptcy prevents the insured Consultant from meeting the retention limit under the policy. Any deductible amount or other obligations under the policy(ies) shall be the sole responsibility of the Consultant. This insurance may be in a policy or policies of insurance, primary and excess, including the so-called umbrella or catastrophe form and be placed with insurers rated "A-" or better

by A.M. Best Company, Inc. The Client and the State will be indemnified, saved, and held harmless to the full extent of any coverage actually secured by the Consultant in excess of the minimum requirements set forth above.



Exhibit A – Cost Proposal Form

Cost Proposal Form – Include completed cost form (see below) in a separate sealed envelope – labeled "**Sealed Cost Form – Vendor Name**" and submit with concurrently with the technical proposal as part of the overall RFP response. The cost estimate should be based on a not to exceed basis and may be further negotiated by Metro COG upon identification of the most qualified Consultant. Changes in the final contract amount and contract extensions are not anticipated.

REQUIRED BUDGET FORMAT

Summary of Estimated Project Cost

1.	Direct Labor	Hours	x	Rate	=	Project Cost	Total
	Name, Title, Function	0.00	X	0.00	=	0.00	0.00
			х		Ш	0.00	0.00
			x		=	0.00	0.00
				Subtotal	=	0.00	0.00
2.	Overhead/Indirect Cost (express	ed as indir	rect re	ate x direct lab	or)	0.00	0.00
3.	Subconsultant Costs					0.00	0.00
4.	Materials and Supplies Costs					0.00	0.00
5.	Travel Costs					0.00	0.00
6.	Fixed Fee					0.00	0.00
7.	Miscellaneous Costs					0.00	0.00
	To	otal Cost			=	0.00	0.00

Exhibit B - Federal Clauses

Equal Employment Opportunity Clause - 41 CFR 60-1.4(a) and 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix II (C)

41 CFR 60-1.4(a)

- (a) Government contracts. Except as otherwise provided, each contracting agency shall include the following equal opportunity clause contained in section 202 of the order in each of its Government contracts (and modifications thereof if not included in the original contract): during the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:
 - (1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of the nondiscrimination clause.
 - (2) The contract will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or no behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
 - (3) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
 - (4) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the secretary of labor.
 - (5) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Orde 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the secretary of labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting agency and the secretary of labor for

purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

- (6) In the event of the contractor's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the secretary of labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- (7) The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the secretary of labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the secretary of labor as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: provided, however, that in the event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

2 CFR Part 200 Appendix II (C)

(C) Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts that meet the definition of "federally assisted construction contract" in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CRF 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity" (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor."

Sanctions and Penalties for Breach of Contract – 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix II (A)

(A) Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at \$150,000, which is the inflation adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C 1908, must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.

Termination for Cause and Convenience – 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix II (B)

(B) All contracts in excess of \$10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the non-Federal entity including the manner by which it will be affected and the basis for settlement.

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement – 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix II (F)

(F) Right to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the definition of "Funding agreement" under 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the recipient of subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

Debarment and Suspension – 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix II (I)

(I) Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689) – A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the governmentwide Excluded Parties List System in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR Part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR Part 1989 Comp., p.235), "Debarment and Suspension." The Excluded Parties List System in SAM contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment - 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix II (J)

(J) Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C 1352) – Contractors that apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award.

Exhibit C – SFN 60232: Proposed Sub-Consultant Request



Exhibit D – Debarment of Suspension Certification

<u>Background and Applicability:</u> In conjunction with the Office of Management and Budget and other affected federal agencies, DOT published an update to 49 CFR Part 29 on November 26, 2003. This government-wide regulation implements Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, Executive Order 12689, Debarment and Suspension, and 31 U.S.C. 6101 note (Section 2455, Public Law 103-255, 108 Stat. 3327).

The provisions of Part 29 apply to all grantee contracts and subcontracts at any level expected to equal or exceed \$25,000 as well as any contract or subcontract (at any level) for federally required auditing services. 49 CFR 29.220 (b). This represents a change from prior practice in that the dollar threshold for application of these rules has been lowered from \$100,000 to \$25,000. These are contracts and subcontracts referred to in the regulation as "covered transactions."

Grantees, contractors, and subcontractors (at any level) that enter into covered transactions are required to verify that the entity (as well as its principals and affiliates) they propose to contract or subcontract with is not excluded or disqualified. They do this by (a) Checking the Excluded Parties List System, (b) Collecting a certification from that person, or (c) Adding a clause or condition to the contract or subcontract. This represents a change from prior practice in that certification is still acceptable but is no longer required. 49 CFR 29.300.

Grantees, contractors, and subcontractors who enter into covered transactions also must require the entities they contract with to comply with 49 CFR 29, subpart C and include this requirement in their own subsequent covered transactions (i.e., the requirement flows down to subcontracts at all levels).

<u>Instructions for Certification:</u> By signing and submitting this bid or proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the signed certification set out below.

<u>Suspension and Debarment:</u> This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29. As such, the contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor, its principals, as defined in 49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at 49 CFR 29.905, are excluded or disqualified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 29.945.

The contractor is required to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C and must include the requirement to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.

By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as follows:

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by the recipient. If it is later determined that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies available to the recipient, the federal government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension

and/or debarment. The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this order. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor		_
Signature of Authorized Official	Date	_//
Name & Title of Contractor's Authorized Official		

Exhibit D - Certification of Restriction on Lobbying

,							
(Name and Title of Grantee Official)							
behalf of	that:						

(Name of Bidder / Company Name)

- No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S. Code 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

The undersigned certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the statements submitted on or with this certification and understands that the provisions of

Request for Proposals (RFP) **2026-2030 Transit Development Plan**

31 U.S.C. Section 3801, et seq., are applicable thereto.
Name of Bidder / Company Name
Type or print name
Signature of authorized representative Date//
(Title of authorized official)